
 
 

PLANNING AND 
REGULATORY FACT FINDING 

VISITS MEETING 
 

2.30 PM THURSDAY, 20TH NOVEMBER, 2014 
 

LAND ADJACENT TO 16 SAXON STREET,  
MERTHYR TYDFIL 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 
(01685) 725203 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members of the Planning and Regulatory Fact 
Finding Visits are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s 
Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct. 
 
Note: 
 

a. Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest; and  

 
 

 



b. Where Members withdraw from a meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave.  

 

3. P/14/0250  -  Land adjacent to 16 Saxon Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil  

 

 To consider a report of the Corporate Director of 
Customer Services.    
 

(Pages 1 - 12) 

4. Any other business as deemed urgent by the 
Chair  

 

 
 
 

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors C T Jones (Chair)  
 B E Mansbridge (Vice-Chair) 
  

H Barrett, T Chaplin, E Galsworthy, A Jones, G Lewis, 
L A Matthews, L E Smart and S Williams 
 

 together with appropriate officers 
  

 
If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 

democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725203 
 

Os byddai’n well gennych gopi o’r agenda hwn mewn iaith arall, cysylltwch a 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01685 725203 

 
 



 
            

 
 
Application No. Date Determining Authority 
P/14/0250 22nd September 2014 MTCBC 
   
Proposed Development Location Name & Address of 

Applicant/Agent 
   
Erection of detached dwelling 
with associated detached garage 
and highway works.  Erection of 
three detached garages 

Land Adjacent To  
16 Saxon Street 
Merthyr Tydfil 
 
 

Mr R Price  
c/o Studio 4B Architecture 
F.a.o. Mr R Coles 
4 Castle Parade 
Usk 
Monmouthshire    

 

 
 
 
APPLICATION SITE 
 
This application relates to an irregular shaped plot of land that is split into two sections by 
an adopted highway that crosses through the centre of the site from south-west to north-
east. The site measures approximately 0.06 of a hectare (including the adopted highway). 
The main part of the site located to the south of the highway would measure approximately 
36m in length by 9m deep. The smaller part of the site located to the north of the highway 
would measure approximately 36m in length with a depth that varies between 9m and 1.5m. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 
The site is currently occupied by eight garages, of which six of these are located along the 
south-east boundary of the site with the remaining 2 located in the western corner of the 
site. These garages are of a typical construction being rendered structures with profiled 
steel flat roofs. The remaining parts of the site comprise overgrown scrub land with a 
number of small trees located along the north-west boundary of the site. It is noted that 
there are also mature trees along the south-east boundary (behind the existing garages) 
some of which lie within the garden areas of adjoining properties and some which are 
situated within the application site. 
 
The site is bounded on all sides by the rear and side garden areas of adjoining residential 
properties. The existing highway crossing through the site is generally narrow with no 
segregated footways and has a blind bend at the northern end. The highway links onto 
Saxon Street to south-west of the site. 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 
 
Full planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing garages within the 
application site and the erection of a detached dwelling with a detached double garage 
adjacent to the south-east boundary of the site. The proposal also includes the erection of 
three single detached garages located in western corner of the site to replace the two 
existing garages in the same area. 
 
The proposed dwelling would measure 15.5m in length (fronting the highway) by 5.6m deep 
and 6.5m high with a pitched roof. The dwelling would be of a modest design and include 
two dormer windows on the front roof plane and one dormer window to the rear roof plane 
to accommodate habitable rooms within the roof space. A porch would also be included on 
the eastern elevation of the building. The proposed double garage serving the dwelling 
would measure 6.4m wide by 6m deep and 5m high with a pitched roof. The external 
finishes of both the dwelling and double garage would comprise smooth render to the 
elevations with a natural slate roof. 
 
The proposed single garages would each measure 3.2m wide by 6m deep and 2.5m high 
with a flat roof. These garages would have a rendered finish with spa chippings and painted 
steel doors. 
 
The existing carriageway would be realigned so that it is closer to the northern boundary of 
the site and would measure between 3.65m and 4.1m wide. Additionally, a new footway 
would be provided along one side of the carriageway that varies between 1m and 1.5m 
wide. The carriageway would be surfaced in asphalt and the footway would be surfaced 
using concrete interlocking paving. 
 
The proposed landscaping scheme would include the planting of trees within the private 
garden area, together with planting along the outside of the garden fence adjacent to the 
proposed footway.   
 
Councillor Clive Jones has requested this application be reported to Committee to consider 
the impact of the development on highway safety and residential amenity. 
 
 

Page 2



PLANNING HISTORY 
 
P/13/0381 - Erection of two detached dwellings. 
 
   REFUSED on 13.01.2014 for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed dormer bungalows, by virtue of their inappropriate 
siting in close proximity to the adjoining rear gardens of dwellings 
within Dane Terrace and the existing mature trees along this common 
boundary, would result in the removal and/or adverse damage to the 
existing trees leading to their subsequent removal. This will give rise to 
the new dwellings having an unacceptable overbearing impact on the 
adjoining rear garden areas and would impinge on the amenities of 
adjoining occupiers, particularly when using their rear garden areas. 
The development would therefore be detrimental to the living 
conditions which neighbouring occupiers could reasonably expect to 
enjoy, contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development 
Plan 2006-2021. 
 
2. The proposed dormer bungalows, by virtue of their inappropriate 
siting in close proximity to existing trees along the south-east boundary 
of the application site, would either result in the removal or adverse 
damage (arising from the significant cutting back of branches and 
impact on their root systems) to those trees. This would be visually 
unacceptable and would have an adverse impact on the character and 
appearance of the area. Therefore the proposed development is 
contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 
2006-2021. 

 
P/12/0161 - Erection of two detached dwellings. 
 
   REFUSED on 14.01.2013 for the following reasons: 
 
   1. The proposed dormer bungalows, by virtue of their inappropriate  

siting in close proximity to the adjoining rear gardens of dwellings 
within Dane Terrace and the existing mature trees along this common 
boundary, will result in the removal and/or adverse damage to the 
existing trees leading to their subsequent removal. This will give rise to 
the new dwellings having an unacceptable overbearing impact on the 
adjoining rear garden areas and will impinge on the amenities of 
adjoining occupiers, particularly when using their rear garden areas. 
The development will therefore be detrimental to the living conditions 
which neighbouring occupiers could reasonably expect to enjoy, 
contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 
2006-2021. 
 
2. The proposed development, by reason of the narrow width of the 
section of carriageway serving the proposed development, provides 
inadequate space to allow vehicles to manoeuvre into and out of the 
proposed dedicated parking spaces. This will create traffic hazards to 

Page 3



the detriment of highway safety and the free flow of pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic, contrary to Policy BW12 and TB11 of the Merthyr 
Tydfil Local Development Plan 2006-2021. 
 
3. The proposed works to the existing adopted highway, including its 
re-alignment and alterations to the carriageway, will result in a loss of 
the trees/hedges along the northern boundary of the site which adjoin 
the rear garden areas serving dwellings within Llewellyn Street. The 
removal of these trees/hedges will give rise to overlooking into those 
adjoining rear garden areas serving Llewellyn Street, particularly from 
the proposed dormer bungalow at the north-east part of the site. The 
development will therefore adversely impinge on the amenities of the 
occupiers of adjoining dwellings within Llewellyn Street, particularly 
when using their rear gardens. This will be to the detriment of the living 
conditions which those neighbouring occupiers can reasonably expect 
to enjoy, contrary to Policy BW7 of the Merthyr Tydfil Local 
Development Plan 2006-2021. 
 

The above application was subsequently DISSMISSED at appeal on 05.07.2013 (ref 
APP/U6925/A/13/2195202). It is acknowledged that the Inspector did not concur with the 
2nd and 3rd reasons for refusal. The appeal was dismissed on similar grounds as the 1st 
reason for refusal. 
 
P/11/0314 - Erection of two detached bungalows. 
 
   REFUSED on 15.03.2012 
 
P/07/0395 - Erection of garage. 
 
   Granted CONSENT on 28.08.2007 
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Engineering and Highways 
Manager    - Highway safety concerns, which led to the refusal  

of the two previous applications (P/11/0314 & 
P/12/0161), relating to substandard highway 
conditions are maintained. Having regard to the 
Planning Inspector’s appeal decision (Ref 
APP/U6925/A/13/2195202), no objection is raised 
subject to conditions relating to foul and surface 
water drainage and retaining works. 

 
Town Planning Division’s 
Policy & Implementation 
Group Leader   - No objection. 
 
Town Planning Division’s 
Landscape Architect  - No objection. 
 

Page 4



Environmental Health Manager - No objection subject to a conditions relating to land  
contamination, hours of construction, importation 
of soil and dust management. 

 
Welsh Water    - No objection subject to conditions relating to foul  

and surface water drainage. 
 
Western Power Distribution - No response. 
 
Wales & West Utilities  - No objection. 
 
PUBLICITY 
 
In accordance with the Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
Order 2012, two site notices were displayed within the vicinity of the site and letters were 
sent to adjoining properties. 
 
As a result of this publicity exercise three letters of objection were received which raise the 
following concerns: 
 

· The access road crossing through the site is narrow and not suitable to serve the 
proposed development. This road is regularly used as a link to nearby streets and 
poses difficulties for larger vehicles. 

· The development would result in a loss of privacy with overlooking into adjoining 
garden areas. 

· There is insufficient on-site parking, particularly in relation to visitor parking. 

· The overall size of the site is too small to accommodate the proposed development. 

· The site is designed for garages, which is the most appropriate use for the site. Such 
use of the site would alleviate parking congestion in the area. 

· There are several mature trees which are home to a number of birdlife. The proposal 
would result in a ‘concrete jungle’ environment. 

· There will be an overbearing impact on the houses at 1 -3 Dane Terrace which are 
situated below the level of the site. The proposed bungalow would have a 
detrimental impact on the quiet enjoyment of the houses. 

· The existing drainage/sewerage systems in the area are old and may not be able to 
cope with any additional loads. 

· The existing trees along the south-east boundary of the site are believed to be 
situated on land which is in the ownership of the residents of Nos. 1-3 Dane Terrace. 

 
Members should be aware that the publicity exercise does not expire until 11th November 
2014. Therefore, if further responses are received they will be reported to the Committee 
verbally. 
 
 
POLICY CONTEXT 
 
The following policies contained within the adopted Merthyr Tydfil Local Development Plan 
(LDP) 2006-2021 are relevant to the determination of this application: 
 

Page 5



· Policy BW1 - Development Strategy – Primary Growth Area. 

· Policy BW4 - Settlement boundary / locational constraints. 

· Policy BW5 - Natural heritage. 

· Policy BW7 - Sustainable design and place making. 

· Policy BW8 - Development and the water environment. 

· Policy BW12 - Development proposals and transport. 

· Policy BW17 - Securing community infrastructure benefits. 

· Policy AS4 - Historic landscape. 

· Policy TB11 - Access, parking and accessibility of local facilities. 

· Policy AS22 - Affordable housing contributions. 
 
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Land-use 
 
The application site lies within the settlement boundary as defined by the LDP Proposals 
Map. As such, the proposed development is generally supported by Policy BW4 of the LDP. 
Given the predominantly residential nature of the surrounding area, the proposed dwelling 
would not be out of character with the surrounding area. 
  
Design 
 
The existing dwellings surrounding the application site are predominantly traditional 
terraced properties. However there are some semi-detached properties that adjoin the site 
to the north and south and a small number of detached properties within the vicinity. 
 
The application site is an ‘infill’ plot with a number of site constraints including its narrow 
width with an adopted highway (albeit substandard) that crosses through the site. This 
minimises the area of land that can be developed for residential purposes to that along the 
south-east boundary of the site, which abuts adjoining rear garden areas. To accommodate 
the proposed development the existing garages would need to be demolished. 
 
The siting of the proposed dwelling has been influenced by the constraints of the site, to 
minimise the impact on existing trees and the amenities of neighbouring occupiers, whilst 
providing sufficient private garden space and on-site parking facilities. The scale of the 
dwelling is considered to be acceptable in terms of its width, depth and height. The use of 
dormer windows assists in reducing potential overbearing impacts on the adjoining rear 
garden areas of Dane Terrace. 
 
The external elevations of the proposed dwelling comprise a simple arrangement of 
windows and doors that complement the modest front elevations of the nearby terraces 
along Saxon Street. There is little evidence of dormer windows being utilised on the 
properties within Saxon Street. However, this feature is not uncharacteristic to the area, 
with the majority of the semi-detached properties along West Grove (to the north-east of the 
site) incorporating dormer windows in their front roof planes. Furthermore, it is considered 
that the dormer windows would not form a dominant feature within Saxon Street. 
 
The proposed external finishes to the dwelling comprise a smooth rendered finish to the 
elevations with a natural grey slate roof and reconstituted stone cills. It is considered that 

Page 6



these proposed finishes are acceptable and compliment the appearance of neighbouring 
properties, particularly along Saxon Street. 
 
Furthermore, it is considered that the general siting and design of the three proposed 
detached garages is acceptable. It is noted that these garages would have a spa dashed 
rendered finish. It is considered that a smooth rendered finish would be more appropriate 
and complementary to the character of the area. This can be addressed by means of a 
suitably worded condition. 
 
The general design of the proposal is considered to be acceptable and would not have an 
adverse impact on the character or appearance of the area. Therefore the development 
complies with Policies BW7 and AS4 of the LDP. 
 
Tree Impacts 
 
Concerns were initially raised in the previous applications for two dwellings (P/11/0314, 
P/12/0161 and P/13/0381) in respect of the potential impact and loss of existing trees along 
the south-east boundary of the site. It is considered the trees have a positive contribution to 
the visual amenity and quality of the area. It is acknowledged that some of the trees that 
overhang the site have since been significantly cut back to the site boundary. Nevertheless, 
this application is now for a single dwelling with a detached garage and the proposed layout 
of the development is considered to have reduced the impact on any mature trees in the 
area. Whilst some of the smaller trees would be lost, this can be suitably compensated by 
the proposed landscaping scheme, which includes the planting of additional trees in the 
private garden area to improve the visual amenity of the area. 
 
It is acknowledged in the previous appeal decision (Ref APP/U6925/A/13/2195202) that the 
Planning Inspector was particularly concerned with the potential impact on existing trees 
along the south-east boundary of the site. It is considered that the proposed layout of this 
scheme with the proposed dwelling further away from existing trees has overcome this 
concern. 
 
Therefore, the proposal complies with Policies BW5 and BW7 of the LDP. 
 
Amenities 
 
The proposed dwelling has been designed in an attempt to minimise any overbearing 
impacts on neighbouring properties by incorporating habitable rooms within the roof space. 
The dwelling would also be located within a central part of the site, approximately 1.1m 
away from the south-east boundary, where there is an existing block wall that is 
approximately 3m high. Whilst the development would be visible between existing trees, it 
is considered that the dwelling would not give rise to an adverse overbearing impact on the 
adjoining rear gardens serving Dane Terrace. In this regard it is noted that the rear gardens 
are approximately 20m in length. 
 
It is noted that a number of existing trees adjacent to the southern corner of the site, within 
an adjoining garden area, have recently been significantly cut back, to remove any 
branches overhanging into the site. It is considered that these trees still provide sufficient 
screening from the proposed development, which helps to reduce any impact on the 
amenities of neighbouring occupiers. Furthermore, some of the trees located within the 

Page 7



north-east corner of the site would be lost as a result of the new double garage. However, 
this would not give rise to adverse overlooking or overbearing impacts.  
 
It is noted that there are no first floor windows serving habitable rooms on the elevation 
facing towards the rear gardens of Dane Terrace. The proposed dormer window on this 
elevation serves a staircase and could be suitably conditioned to ensure it is fitted with fixed 
and obscure glazing to minimise any potential overlooking. 
 
The separation distance between the proposed dwelling and the rear garden areas to the 
north-west (serving the properties along Llewellyn Street) would be at least 5.7m. The 
existing trees and hedgerow along the northern boundary of the site would provide a 
sufficient screen to the development, minimising any overlooking concern. It is noted that a 
similar conclusion was made by the Planning Inspector in the previous appeal decision (Ref 
APP/U6925/A/13/2195202). 
 
It is considered that the proposal would not adversely impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers. Therefore, the development complies with Policies BW7 of the 
LDP. 
 
Highways 
 
The application site is split into two areas by an adopted highway that crosses through the 
site from south-west to north-east. This highway is narrow in nature with a blind bend at the 
north-east corner of the site leading onto Llewellyn Street. Although the highway is adopted 
it is more characteristic of a lane, due to its narrow carriageway with no pedestrian 
segregation.  
 
Due to the siting of the dwelling and the creation of a segregated footway, the proposal 
includes the realignment of the carriageway closer to the northern boundary of the site. This 
would result in an increase in the overall width of the highway (including the new footway) 
from 3.9m to at least 5m. 
 
The existing width of the access road together with the blind corner currently presents some 
difficulties for larger service vehicles to manoeuvre. However, the development of the site 
would not exacerbate these highway constraints. The proposal would generally improve the 
width of the carriageway and would make provision for a segregated footway along one 
side of the road. Therefore, the development of the site would improve highway safety in 
the area, particularly for pedestrians. 
 
In the western part of the site, the two existing garages would be replaced with three new 
detached garages of a similar design and size. These garages would be used separately 
from the proposed dwelling and should be appropriately conditioned to ensure they are 
used only for domestic purposes. A detached double garage would also be erected in the 
eastern corner of the site to serve the proposed dwelling. It is considered that adequate off-
street parking provision would be provided to serve the proposed dwelling. 
 
Given the current use of the site and the location of the proposed garages, being similar to 
the existing garages, it is considered that the proposed development would not give rise to 
highway safety concerns. Furthermore, the proposal is unlikely to result in a greater number 
of vehicular movements in the area. 

Page 8



 
Whilst the Engineering and Highways Manager has raised concerns about the sub-standard 
highway, it is noted in Para 21 of the appeal decision (Ref APP/U6925/A/13/2195202), the 
Inspector did not raise any concern with regard to the layout of the scheme in terms of 
highway safety. Given that the highway design of this proposal is similar to that presented 
in the appeal, no highway objection is raised on this application. 
 
Therefore the proposal complies with Policies BW12 and TB11 of the LDP. 
 
Planning Obligations 
 
Policies BW17 and AS22 of the LDP consider the requirement for planning obligations and 
affordable housing contributions respectively. Using the default values in the Three 
Dragons Toolkit, the Town Planning Division’s Policy and Implementation Group Leader 
has indicated that no planning obligation or affordable housing contribution would be 
sought, as this would likely render the development financially unviable. 
 
Therefore the proposed development complies with Policy BW17 and AS22 of the LDP. 
 
Representations 
 
Objection letters were received as a result of the publicity exercise carried out raising 
concerns in respect of access, parking, privacy, the size of the site, drainage, the impact on 
trees and land ownership. 
 
Whilst concerns have been highlighted in respect of the level of parking provided, two off-
street parking spaces would be accommodated within a double garage to serve the 
dwelling, which is deemed to be adequate. Although the majority of existing residents 
currently park on the street, it is considered that any visitors to the proposed development 
could still be reasonably accommodated along Saxon Street or Llewellyn Street without 
giving rise to highway safety concerns. In this regard it is noted that the Engineering and 
Highways Manager has not raised any concerns with parking. 
 
The suitability of the access road serving the site and the impact on the amenities of 
neighbouring occupiers has been addressed above. Furthermore, the submitted plans 
demonstrate that a single detached dwelling can be accommodated within the site with 
sufficient amenity space. 
 
It is considered that the existing drainage system in the area can adequately accommodate 
the proposed development. In this regard it is noted that both Welsh Water and the 
Engineering and Highways Manager have not raised any objection. 
 
Matters relating to land ownership are not a material planning consideration. 
Notwithstanding this, the application form indicates that the land within the boundary of the 
application site is in the applicant’s ownership.  Furthermore, as members are probably 
aware, any trees (other than those subject of a Tree Preservation Order) which overhang 
the applicants property can be cut back to prevent any encroachment.  Such operations do 
not require the permission of the local planning authority. 

 

 

Page 9



CONCLUSIONS 
 
For the reasons set out above, the proposed development is considered to be acceptable in 
planning terms and complies with the relevant LDP policies. Accordingly, the following 
recommendation is made: 
 
RECOMMENDATION: BE APPROVED subject to the following CONDITIONS: 
  
 1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years 

from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason - To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 2. Notwithstanding the details submitted, prior to the construction of the dwelling 

hereby approved details/samples of the materials to be used in the construction of 
the external surfaces of the dormer bungalow shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of visual amenity. 
 
 3. No development shall commence until details of a scheme for the disposal of foul 

and surface water (incorporating SUDS principles where appropriate) has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of 
the dormer bungalow and retained in perpetuity. 

  
 Reason - To ensure the development meets with current drainage/engineering 

requirements. 
 
 4. Prior to the occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, a plan indicating the 

positions, height, design, materials and type of boundary treatment to be erected 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The boundary 
treatment shall be completed as approved before the building is occupied. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of visual amenity of the area and the privacy of occupiers of 

adjoining properties. 
 
 5. BEFORE works relating to the dwelling hereby approved commence on site, full 

details and calculations including constructional and facing materials of any 
necessary retaining walls, which exceed 1 metre in height, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and such works as may be 
approved shall be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the dwelling. 

  
 Reason - To ensure the development meets with current drainage/engineering 

requirements. 
 
 6. BEFORE works commence on site a detailed landscaping scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, which shall 
include details for the provision of planting along the proposed private garden 

Page 10



boundaries, as indicated on the Proposed Site Plan (Drawing No. PL 02 Rev E). The 
landscaping scheme shall include the following: 

  
 i.  written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with 

plant and grass establishment);  
 ii.  a schedule of plants noting species, plant supply sizes and proposed 

numbers/density where appropriate;  
 iii.  an implementation programme (including phasing of works where relevant); 
 iv.  a landscape management plan for a minimum period of 5 years. 
  
 The approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in the first planting season 

following the completion/occupation of the development or in accordance with the 
agreed implementation programme and managed in accordance with the approved 
management plan. Any trees or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with other of similar size and 
species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  
 Reason - To ensure the development contributes towards the landscape quality and 

appearance of the site and surrounding area and is appropriately 
implemented/managed in a satisfactory manner. 

 
 7. No development shall take place until a site investigation to determine the nature 

and extent of contamination has been carried out. The investigation shall include: 
  
 i.  a thorough walkover survey to identify areas of potential ground 

contamination; 
 ii.  at least 1 No. random soil sample taken in the location of the proposed dormer 

bungalow and garages; 
 iii. the soil sample(s) taken shall be tested for Arsenic, Cadmium, Chromium 

(total), Lead, Mercury and Selenium, Boron, Copper, Nickel and Zinc, 
Speciated PAHs, TPH, Phenol and Asbestos. 

  
 The results of the site investigation shall be made available to the Local Planning 

Authority before any development begins. If any contamination is found during the 
site investigation, a report specifying the measures to be taken to remediate the site 
to render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be remediated in 
accordance with the approved measures before development begins. 

  
 If during the course of development any contamination is found that has not been 

identified in the site investigation, additional measures for the remediation of this 
source of contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved 
additional measures before the development is occupied. 

  
 Reason - To ensure the risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 

and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, 
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried 

Page 11



out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite 
receptors. 

 
 8. Construction works relating to the development shall not take place other than during 

the following times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 

  
 Monday to Friday - 0800hrs to 1800hrs 
 Saturday - 0900hrs to 1400hrs 
 Not at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
  
 Reason - To ensure that the noise emitted from construction works is not a source of 

nuisance to occupants of nearby residential properties 
 
 9. Before the dwelling hereby permitted is brought into use, the dormer window on the 

south-east (rear) elevation of the building shall be fitted with obscured glazing, 
details of which shall first be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, and any part of the windows that is less than 1.7m above the floor of the 
room in which it is installed shall be non-opening. The windows shall be permanently 
retained in that condition thereafter. 

  
 Reason - In the interest of protecting the residential amenities of neighbouring 

occupiers along Dane Terrace. 
 
10. The three single detached garages hereby approved shall be used for domestic 

purposes and/or the storage of private motor vehicles only and not for any 
commercial or business use. 

  
 Reason - To define the use of the garages in the interest of residential amenity of 

adjoining residents and highway safety. 
 
11. The double garage serving the dwelling hereby approved shall be kept available for 

the parking of private motor vehicles at all times. 
  
 Reason - To ensure adequate parking provision is provided at all times. 
 
12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and County Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995 (as amended for Wales) (or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modifications), no enlargements, improvements 
or other additions to the dwelling shall be erected without the prior submission of a 
planning application for the consideration of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason - Having regard to the restricted nature of the site and the need to assess 

the potential effect of any future extensions on the residential amenity of occupiers of 
neighbouring properties. 

 

Page 12


	Agenda
	3 P/14/0250  -  Land adjacent to 16 Saxon Street, Merthyr Tydfil

